
 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care (Mental 
Health) Trust 

Date: Tuesday, 1st February, 2022 
Time: 2.30 pm. 

 Venue: Hollingworth, First Floor, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

 
Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 
 
1   Apologies  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them. 
  

 

 
3   Minutes  3 - 6 

 To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 23rd November 2021.  
 
4   Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust Updates  7 - 29 

 To consider a presentation from Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust 
relating to: 

- PCFT and ICS Developments 
- Getting to Good Progress Report 
- Financial Update 
- Impact of Covid-19 on Service Delivery 

  

 

 
5   Date of Next Meeting  

 

 The next Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care (Mental Health) Trust 
meeting is scheduled for 22nd March 2022. 

 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care (Mental Health) Trust Members 
 
Councillor Roger Brown Councillor Wendy Cocks 
Councillor Angela Cosgrove Councillor Patricia Mary Dale 
Councillor Dickie Davies Councillor Helen Foster-Grime 
Councillor Joan Grimshaw Councillor Louie Hamblett (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Stephen Homer Councillor Colin McLaren (Chair) 
Councillor Clive Patrick Councillor Teresa Smith 
Councillor Patricia Sullivan Councillor Mary Whitby 
Councillor John Wright  
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact:-  
 
Janine Jenkinson  
Committee Services  
Rochdale Borough Council  
Floor 2 - Number One Riverside  
Smith Street  
Rochdale  
OL16 1XU  
 
Telephone – 01706 924616  
E-mail – janine.jenkinson@rochdale.gov.uk 
 

mailto:janine.jenkinson@rochdale.gov.uk


JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL FOR PENNINE CARE (MENTAL HEALTH) 
TRUST 

 
MINUTES OF MEETING 

Tuesday, 23rd November 2021 
 

PRESENT: Councillor McLaren (Oldham MBC) (in the Chair), Councillors 
Davies, Foster-Grime, Wright (Stockport MBC), Hamblett (Oldham MBC), 
Dale, Sullivan (Rochdale Borough Council), Grimshaw, Whitby (Bury MBC) 
and Patrick (Tameside MBC). 
 
OFFICERS:  P. Thompson (Committee Services – Rochdale Borough 
Council). 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  N. Tamanis (Director of Finance – Pennine Care 
NHS Trust). 
 

9 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Cocks (Rochdale 
Borough Council), Councillor Cosgrove (Oldham MBC), Councillor Homer and 
Councillor T. Smith (Tameside MBC). 
 

10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 

11 MINUTES 
Resolved: 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Scrutiny Committee for Pennine 
Care, held 17th September 2021, be approved, as a correct record. 
 

12 FINANCIAL UPDATE 
The Committee received a presentation from the Trust’s Director of Finance 
which informed Members of Pennine Care’s financial performance, thus far, in 
2021/2022, noting that the Trust had delivered a breakeven position at the 
end of September 2021 – the midpoint of the current financial year. 
  
The Committee was advised that at 30th September 2021, capital expenditure 
was slightly behind plan by £0.6m. Delays on the e-rostering scheme and the 
ICT infrastructure programme were the main drivers of the performance; both 
schemes were delayed during the worst months of the Covid-19 pandemic 
and were currently being re-scoped to maximise benefits from recent changes 
in technology.  
 
The Director of Finance reported that whilst release of efficiency savings was 
ahead of plan this had mainly been driven by one-off budget underspends and 
the challenge remained to ensure these savings would be recurrent in nature. 
A Value Improvement Group, has been established and was led by the Trust’s 
Deputy Medical Director to develop a three year programme to identify value 
improvements which should lead to improvements in productivity and 
sustainable cost reductions.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



  
In terms of the workforce, at month 6 (September 2021) temporary staffing 
expenditure was £12.7m, equating to c14% of total pay spend.  Challenges 
around recruitment and retention coupled with increased acuity, had led to the 
enactment of business continuity plans in a number of core services, and in 
these areas higher rates were having to be paid to ensure services can be 
safely staffed.  The mobilisation of new and enhanced services, underpinned 
by additional income received from local commissioners and nationally funded 
programmes, is commencing across all localities.  A workforce transformation 
group was tracking appointments to all new posts to try and minimise any 
further risk to core services through internal appointments.  
 
The Committee were advised of the Trust’s priorities in terms of the provision 
of mental health services: 

• delivery against in-year ICS workforce plans, making full use of new 
roles, and development of a multi-year mental health workforce plan  

• accelerating the recovery of face-to-face care in community mental 
health services and submitting the re-categorisation of community 
mental health spend over autumn  

• reducing out-of-area placements, long lengths of stay and long waits in 
EDs for mental health patients  

• continuing to increase access to CYP community mental health 
services, including eating disorders, crisis and school-based  mental 
health support teams; NHS-funded talking therapies, individual 
placement and support (IPS) and specialist perinatal mental health 
services  

• advancing equalities, including delivering the target for physical health 
checks for people with severe mental illness (SMI) and recovering the 
dementia diagnosis rate  

• delivering actions to enable whole pathway commissioning for provider 
collaborative front runners from April 2022  

• ensuring that digital capabilities are in place across mental health 
services to drive interoperability and improvements in patient safety 

 
In terms of efficiency savings the Trust had been asked to find £3.4 million by 
the end of 2021/2022. Most of these savings could be found by not filling 
vacant posts. In addition with most staff (who are able to) work from home 
which also helps to reduce costs. However Pennine Care were struggling to 
fill advertised vacant posts. The Trust had received additional funding from the 
government to help them to meet financial shortfalls. 
 
A major priority for the Trust was the roll-out of the Covid-19 vaccination 
programme. In this regard the Director of Finance committed that the Trust 
would present details to a future meeting of the Committee regarding the 
delivery of their Covid-19 vaccination programme across the Trust’s footprint 
and the impact this will have on staffing issues, given the expectation that 
NHS staff should be fully vaccinated. 
 
Resolved: 
1. That the report be noted 

Page 4



2. That a report on the Trust’s Covid-19 vaccination programme, including any 
staffing implications, be presented to a future meeting of the Committee. 

 
13 INFORMATION MANAGEMENT AND TECHNOLOGY - PORTFOLIO 

UPDATE 
The Trust’s Director of Finance reported on the development of information 
management and technology across the organisation’s footprint. A ‘5 Year’ 
Infrastructure Plan outlined the Trust’s current ICT Infrastructure and how this 
would need to change and improve over the next five years for the technology 
to remain safe, secure, reliable and up to date with the latest developments as 
Pennine Care moved towards cloud based provision and the use of innovative 
practises such as Artificial Intelligence. The Trust sought to connect its 
services to the most critical applications and connect data more swiftly and 
efficiently whilst providing a platform for growth, development and innovation. 
The 5 Year Infrastructure Plan was built upon five strategic objectives: 

a. Making it easier for staff to work with technology 
b. Services are kept safe and secure from attempted cyber-attacks 
c. Services are made more efficient through the use of technology 
d. Customer satisfaction rates increase year on year 
e. Staff can work remotely and with agility 

 
Resolved: 
that the report be noted. 
 

14 ELECTRONIC PATIENT RECORDS 
Further to Minute 6 of the Committee’s last meeting, held 17th September 
2021, Members were updated on the Trust’s commitment to roll out electronic 
patient records across their hospital sites and other facilities. 
 
The Trust had commenced the roll-out of ‘Cohort 3’ in May and June 2021. 
There was evidence of real-time admissions discharges and transfers taking 
place but challenges were being faced with digital maturity and skills. Most of 
the records were being stored on the NHS’s PARIS network and an upgrade 
to the PARIS 7.1 model, which Pennine Care used, was due to be completed 
by the end of February 2022. Some other staff not conversant would be 
trained for use and this would be rolled out to those remaining staff. Therefore 
by the end of April 2022 it was anticipated that all essential staff would be 
conversant with the PARIS system. 
 
Members of the Committee in considering this matter requested clarification 
as to the Trust’s Information Technology system’s compatibility with the ICT 
systems which were used by the local authorities in whose areas the Trust 
operated. The Committee also sough clarity on the confidentiality of electronic 
prescribing. The Committee was advised that these two issues were a priority 
for Pennine Care and were being examined in detail. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

Page 5



15 DEVELOPMENT OF NEW FACILITIES 
The Trust’s Director of Finance reported upon the Trust’s Capital Programme 
which comprised mainly of two large infrastructure projects: 

a. PICU Centre in Tameside (which was due to be opened in June 2022) 
b. The refurbishment of the CAMHS facilities at Stopford House, 

Stockport (which was due for completion in May/June 2022) 
 
The Trust’s Director of Finance extended an invitation to Members of the 
Committee to view these facilities when they were open and ready for use. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 

16 WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022 AND DATES FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
The Committee was advised that the following reports were to be included in 
the Committee’s Work Programme 2021/2022: 
 

a. ICS Update - (January 2022) 
b. ‘Getting to Good’ progress report - (January 2022) 
c. Budget 2022/2023 (Capital and Revenue) – (March 2022) 
d. Update on PICU Unit/Stopford House refurbishment – (March 2022) 
e. Staffing report (including engagement of temporary and agency staff 

and staffing vacancies) – (March 2022) 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Committee’s work programme be noted. 
2. The Committee hold its next two ‘formal’ meeting on Tuesday, 18th 

January 2022 and Tuesday, 22nd March 2022; both meetings to 
commence at 2.00pm and to be held in the Training and Conference 
Centre, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, Ol16 1XU. 

3. The Committee’s clerk be requested to arrange an informal meeting 
between Committee members and the Chief Executive of Pennine 
Care and a senior representative of the Trust’s governing body on 
Tuesday, 14th December 2021. 

 

Page 6



Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust updates to Joint 

Health Overview Scrutiny Committee meeting on 1st

February 2022

Presented by 

Strategy Lead for ICS Developments

Andrea Osborne, Deputy Director of Finance

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



PCFT and the ICS 

DevelopmentsP
age 8



PCFT Role

 Involvement across GM and in each locality :

 Supported the development of the GM ‘Spatial Levels’ work

 Supporting the development of the GM Provider 

Collaborative and the MH Provider Collaborative within it

 Supporting the development of locality arrangements and 

developing a shared MH Narrative with System Partners

P
age 9



Well Population
1.7m

At Risk
550k

Mild
350k

Moderate
150k

Severe
50k 

Episodic – 30k / 
Persistent – 13k / 

Complex Enduring – 7k+ 

Estimated Spectrum of Mental Health Need across Greater Manchester population

Based on the Productivity Commission Issues Paper into the Social and Economic Benefits of Improving MH (Jan 2019)       

Complex Care
15k+

High Intensity  Care
18k

Moderate Intensity  Care
70k

Low Intensity  
Care
140k

Self Care
700k

Estimated number of people (adults and children) in each group based on their mental health state over 12 months
People categorised as having a mental health problem (mild/moderate/severe) if they had an episode in a calendar year
Categorised at risk if they had an emerging symptom within a 12 month period, an episode of in the year before or were children/parents of a person presenting with mental 
health problems        

Wellbeing

P
age 10



Spatial level for design and delivery of all age mental health and emotional 
wellbeing services

Text

Neighbourhood level early 
intervention

Whole population 
emotional wellbeing

Greater Manchester 
designed and delivered 
services

Locality designed and 
delivered services within a  

single provider footprint 
(Alliance model)

• Self care
• Digital  support
• Building on own and 

local assets
• All age emotional 

wellbeing and resilience

• Primary Care 
interventions (including 
MH Practitioners and 
Step 2/3 IAPT)

• Social Prescribing and 
VCSE services

• Perinatal mental health
• School based support
• Counselling/bereavemen

t

• Acute Inpatient services
• Open/locked rehab 
• Specialised inpatient 

services
• Secure/specialist 

services

• Specialist community-
based services Crisis care 
services

• Step up/step down
• Rehabilitation 
• Specialist perinatal 

services

Thrive model – population 

needs based approach

Spatial approach using 

needs, population size, 

complexity and partners

Local planning and delivery 

with provision at scale for 

specialist community and 

inpatient services

Critical interfaces 

between segments for 

needs and managing risk

P
age 11



ICS Arrangements: LTP Implementation 

P
age 12



GM System design components :

Localities

• Each locality to have :

• Locality Board 

• Place Lead

• Local Provider Collaborative

• Clinical and Professional Advisory Body/Group

• Pennine Care Interface :

• Member of Locality Board

• Partner in Local Provider Collaborative

• Member of Clinical and Professional Advisory Body/Group

P
age 13



GM System design components :

GM Wide

• GM Provider Collaborative – Pennine Care a member 

• GM Mental Health, Learning Disability and Autism 

Partnership Board – Pennine Care a member

• Various GM networks and working groups – Pennine Care a 

member

P
age 14



Challenges

• Consistency of arrangements across the 

footprint

• Resources required to support 5 localities 

governance 

• Financial flows and relationship with 

locality still in development

P
age 15



Thank You – Any QuestionsP
age 16



Getting to Good Progress 

Report

P
age 17



2021/22 Update

Limited progress due to the ongoing challenges of the Covid-19 pandemic

Single Gender Accommodation:

• Adult inpatient ward are fully operational as single gender units.

• Some older age inpatient wards are behind schedule to transition to single gender 

due to feedback from clinical leaders where alternative configuration needs to be 

considered. 

Patient Experience Resource:

• Successfully recruited to the Head of Patient and Carer Experience and 

Engagement.  This has enabled us to commencing the benchmarking exercise to 

support the implementation of a new strategy.

P
age 18



Trust Financial position 

update

P
age 19



Executive Dashboard 2021/22 – Period Ending 30th November 2021 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUMMARY POSITION 
 
Financial Performance: Following conclusion of the H2 planning process this 
report now reflects financial performance against the submitted plan. 
At the end of November the overall position is broadly in line with plan. There 
has been a reduction in agency costs within the month along with a reduction 
in substantive spend (mainly within corporate services) that has been offset by 
cost increases in ICT licences and utilities. 
 
Cash: at the end of November cash balances are £44.8m, an increase of £3m 
from the end of October, this continues to be due to the delay in the 
mobilisation of new services along with receipt of funding in advance for the 
lead provider collaborative. Discussions with regards to the slippage monies 
arising from new investment are ongoing at both GM system and locality level.  
 
The forecast improvement in the year end cash balances is due to the 
anticipated receipt of the H2 system support monies along with a review of the 
likely timing of settlement of liabilities.  
 
Capital: At the end of November capital expenditure is behind plan by £1.3m, 
with £2.9m having been spent on the PICU, £0.4m on the digital schemes and 
£1.1m on estates schemes.  
 

Efficiency: The full year efficiency plan has been increased to reflect the 
overachievement at H1 (£0.56m)and  includes an additional H2 target of 
£0.8m along with the H2 stretch target of £2.82m  
 
The corporate redesign programme continues to deliver the £1.4m target 
on a non-recurrent basis and is ahead of plan at M8 by £0.3m an increase 
of £0.1m. Non recurrent savings identified through one-off budget 
underspends continue to be ahead of plan and offset the in year recurrent 
target. The system stretch target continues to be achieved through a range 
of non–recurrent measures. 
 

Temporary Staffing: Expenditure to date is £16.4m. Off framework 
agencies continue to be utilised where business continuity plans have been 
enacted, the temporary staffing booking process continues to be monitored 
weekly by Executive Directors with improvements made following the 
implementation of the intensive support team resource.

Key Financial 
Indicators 

M8 YTD 
Budget 

£000 

M8 YTD 
Actual 
£000 

M8 YTD 
Var 

£000 

FY 
Budget 
£’000 

FY 
F/cast 
£000 

FY 
Var 

£000 

Financial performance: 

Trading (Surplus)/ Deficit 
before system support  

 
11,290 

 
11,299 9 16,695 16,695 0 

Overall (Surplus)/ Deficit  (20) 7 27 0 0 0 

 
Cash: 

      

Closing cash balance  44,810   23,661  

 
Capital: 

      

Capital plan  5,743 4,397 (1,346) 10,231 10,231 - 

 
Efficiency: 

Corporate Redesign 933 1,271 338 1,400 1,738 338 

Recurrent Savings 984 87 (897) 1,881 131 (1,750) 

Non recurrent Savings 1,722 2,778 869 3,062 4,474 1,412 

System Stretch Target  1,766 1,766 0 3,658 3,658 0 

Total 5,405 5,902 309 10,001 10,001 0 

 
Temporary staffing: 

Agency  8,030     
Bank  8,332     
Total Temporary Staff  16,362     

Financial Planning Update:   
The H2 planning process has concluded overall it remains in line with previously 
reported assumptions.   
 
National planning guidance for 2022/23 is expected during December. A multi- year 
funding settlement has been agreed covering 22/23 through to 24/25, whilst there is 
some continued support for costs arising from Covid the settlement assumes that 
almost all costs are entirely removed by then end of 24/25 and that underlying 
recurrent expenditure will reduce significantly each year to recover lost efficiency. 
 
For 22/23 the revenue programme allocation for the integrated care board is expected 
to be based on the H2 system envelope adjusted for the full year effect of 21/22 along 
with uplifts for inflation, activity and a national efficiency target, currently expected at 1-
1.5%. A target adjustment is also expected at system level to reflect the systems 
distance from target fair share allocation.   

P
age 20



Impact of Covid

P
age 21



Impact of Covid & Service delivery 

HMR Mental Health Services

Caroline McCann

Associate Director of Operations 

HMR PCFT

P
age 22



• Services have encountered pressures and challenges in the 

following areas;

– Increased absence due to positive covid tests or being identified 

as a contact – where safe to do so individual risk assessments 

have supported early return however impact significant.

– Increased demand on inpatient provision. Current areas of 

pressure are for male beds and our older age wards.

– Increasing rates of DTOC in older adults due to care home 

placements being hard to access due to covid closures.

– Moorside Ward recently closed in early December due to 

Omicron outbreak. Excellent management of outbreak however 

reduced bed capacity. 

– Community teams have maintained high levels of engagement 

with patients and clinics remained operational despite high 

levels of staff absence in late Dec.

P
age 23



• Arrangements for visiting have been reviewed in line 

with national guidance – this presents a particular 

challenge for our detained patients and use of 

technology is supported where possible to support. 

• Staff have supported the delivery of the vaccine 

programme to our patients.

• Staff continue to use lateral flow tests and good 

engagement with staff vaccination programme 

including booster and flu vaccines. 

• Acknowledgement of the impact of covid on staff 

resilience in the longer term. Local and organisational 

responses in place – Well-being day and engagement 

with the PCFT Resilience Hub.

P
age 24



Impact of COVID on staffing levels

Staff absence

The chart below shows the absence levels reported on the 

daily sitrep as a result of COVID (includes staff with COVID 

and those self-isolating).  As the chart shows, there was an 

increasing number of staff absences from December 2021 

reaching a significant peak on 4th January 2022 as a result of 

the increased rates of Omicron cases.  

Prior to the recent peak in cases which is having a significant 

impact on staff absence, the main concern for the workforce 

was the ongoing impact of COVID on their health, wellbeing 

and resilience particularly concerns regarding staff burnout as 

result of the contninued pressure of managing and maintaining 

services during COVID.

P
age 25



P
age 26



Staff Wellbeing 

During the last 18 months - 2 years we have increased the 
availability of psychological wellbeing support for staff and also 
increased support for line managers and staff with regular 
wellbeing conversations and risk assessments as required.  Our 
vaccination programme has been available for all staff to access to 
protect themselves and others.

P
age 27



Any Questions?

P
age 28



P
age 29


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust Updates

